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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The McKinley Park School is a one-story, stucco-surfaced institutional structure 
with a two-story central tower. The Mission Revival building stands on one square 
block surrounded by open space with a lawn and mature trees to the south and parking 
to the north. It stands just north of the Truckee River and is located at the base 
of the Newlands Heights bluff with Keystone Avenue as the western and Riverside Drive 
as the southern boundaries.

Constructed in 1909 to the designs of architect George Ferris, the multi-story 
structure is U-shaped with a central open court that faces south. A two-story central 
tower stands at the base of the TJ with a one-story wing extending to the north behind 
it. The roof is composed of intersecting gables. Scroll shaped parapets project from 
the facades of the wings that flank the central court.

The corners of the wings are marked by battered post forms indented at the eaveline 
and carrying capped projections that define the ends of the parapet scroll forms. 
Battered pilasters are centered in the south facades of each wing, flanked by paired 
windows. A raised design is centered beneath the scrolled gable. Paired and capped 
post projections flank side entries to each wing. These wings also contain rectangular 
windows on both east and west facades. Low walls, penetrated by circular openings and 
a stairway, define the courtyard area. An arcade with arched openings stands at the 
base of the U beneath the two-story tower and its scrolled parapet. The name of the 
school is written on a scrolled panel above paired windows in the south facade and the 
tower roof is gabled. A raised design ornaments the parapet above the name panel. 
A scrolled parapet that matches that of its facade surfaces the rear of the tower.

A rectangular wing extends to the north from the rear of the tower. This gabled 
wing contains rectangular windows, two canopied entrances, two newer doors, and stair 
access to the interior. A handicap access ramp has been constructed and a shed roof 
addition has been made to the rear of the wing on the west. A horizontal projecting 
belt course encircles the entire structure a few feet above the ground. Various 
chimney stacks and vents extend from the roof.

The structure is constructed in brick, covered with concrete stucco, and trimmed 
with concrete. The building is 150' x 160 f and was almost identical in design to the 
Mt. Rose Elementary School which is already listed in the National Register.

The structure remains basically unaltered.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The McKinley Park School is a particularly fine representative of the Mission 

Revival style. The school is one of the so-called "Spanish Quartet" of four Reno 
grammar schools constructed at virtually the same time and almost identical in design. 
The schools were highly lauded at the time for their modern convenience and tehnology, 
as well as their potential capacities to serve as community focal points. They represent 
a spurt in building intended to answer the growing needs of Reno. The principal town of 
Nevada was growing, becoming the financial and bureaucratic hub of the Newlands Reclama­ 
tion Project and the Tonopah-Goldfield silver and gold strikes of central Nevada.

The school is an interesting and careful execution of the Mission Revival style. 
The plan appears to be well adapted to school needs with its ground floor access and 
the almost free standing placement of classroom wings to gain a maximum of natural 
light. The courtyard design with its arcade and decorative low walls is a particularly 
attractive feature. The design treatment of the facades and tower is both handsome and 
skillful.

The structure was designed by architect George Ferris and was constructed in 1909 
at a cost of $40,000. It was built at approximately the same time as the Orvis Ring 
School which was almost identical in design. Of the four schools constructed between 
1909 and 1912, only two survive. The other, the Mt. Rose Elementary School, was listed 
by the National Register of Historic Places in 1977.

At the time of their construction, the schools were lauded for their design and 
planning "for the health, comfort and convenience of pupils and teachers, and to the 
demands of the industrial idea in modern education." The mechanical fan system of 
heating and ventilating was innovative. The schools were commended in publications 
of the Russell Sage Foundation for their modern construction and recreational capacities 
and, at the same time, the role they assumed as social centers for their respective 
communities.

Superintendent of Reno Schools at the time, B.D. Billinghurst, was said to have 
hired the architect, George Ferris, to employ the Mission Revival style because of his 
own interest in Spanish architecture. The State Superintendent of Public Instruction, 
however, had a different interpretation. In his report to the 27th Session of the 
Legislature (1915) suggested that mission architecture is "especially adapted to one- 
story structures." He added that "there is nothing better for school purposes than 
one-story buildings. The one-story plan eliminates the stair climbing so destructive 
to the nervous strength of pupils and teachers, and also renders danger from fire 
impossible."

The structure reverted to the City in September 1975. It continues to serve the 
function it was designed to serve - a social and cultural center for the community - 
and now operates as the office of the City Recreational Center.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Washoe County Assessor's parcel #11-084-02. Located on the block bounded by Riverside 
Drive on the south (268.96'), Keystone Avenue on the west (432.55'), Jones Street on 
the north (268.96'), and Vine Street on the east (432.55').
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As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665), I 
hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the 
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.,
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